
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\021422\PC Info\Eldon Homes Concept Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  February 8, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners  
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the February 14, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting  
 
 
Eldon Homes Subdivision Concept Plan 
This agenda item is for discussion only.  City Staff have not had time to completely review this 
concept.   
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





¯ 0 100 200
Feet¯ 0 100 200
Feet


5.05 Acre
PARK


SWM


SWM


SWM


SUBDIVISION CONCEPT


wetland


Aaker Rd


S  4th  St


S 
 P


ag
e S


t


Isham  St


Future Rd “A”


Future Rd “B”


Future Rd “C”


Future Rd “D”


Future Rd “D”


60’ ROW


66
’ R


O
W


10
0’


 R
O


W


81’ ROW


(providing additional 15’ to ROW)


10’ Trail


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


60’ ROW


40’   TRAIL  CORRIDOR


98 Lots (121 Units)
23 Duplex Lots (46 U)
75 Single-Family Lots
4.74 Acres Parkland Dedication (no SWM / wetland)








S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 021422.docx 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Plan Commission of the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special virtual 


meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location 


given below. 


Meeting of: PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Monday, February 14, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m. 


 
Join Zoom Meeting 


https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09 


 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799     Meeting ID: 991 8902 8139 Passcode: 389293 


 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any 
written comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator at 608-646-0421.   
 


 


 
AGENDA 


1. Call to Order 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of January 10 and February 7, 


2022.   


3. Council Representative Report. 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


5. Zoning ordinance amendment to section 78-920. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


6. Zoning ordinance amendment to section 78-904. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


7. Animal’s ordinance creation of section 6-16. 


 Recommendation to Council 


8. Conditional use review for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (fitness center) at 318 


S. Forrest Street. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


9. Planned Development – General Development Plan at 51 West Development, Lot 18. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 



https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 021422.docx 


 


10. Site Plan Amendment – Dumpster Enclosure at Dollar Tree, 1008 Nygaard Street 


11. Stone Crest Subdivision Concept Plan 


12. Eldon Homes (Teigen Farm) Subdivision Concept Plan 


13. Future agenda items. 


14. Adjournment. 


 


COMMISSIONERS:  
Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair   Tom Robinson   Todd Barman 


Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair  Tom Majewski  Phil Caravello 


Al Farrow 


 


E-MAIL NOTICES: 
Leadership Team    Council members   Steve Kittelson 


City Attorney Matt Dregne  Stoughton Hub   Area Townships  


Peter Sveum    Michael Stacey   Plan Commissioners 


smonette@stolib.org   Spencer Meier    John Matson 


wstotv981@gmail.com  Chamber of Commerce   Tom Matson 


tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com Stephen Tremlett   Rob Hostrawser 


Tami McCullough   Brett Riemen    Brian Spanos 


Bob Dvorak    Kevin Lord    Jimmy Brooks 


Todd Nelson    John Brigham    info@dane4dogs.org 


           


     


            


 


Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires 


special accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at 


least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be 


made. In addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but 


does not have access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the 


number above at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate 


arrangements can be made.  



mailto:smonette@stolib.org

mailto:wstotv981@gmail.com

mailto:tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com

mailto:info@dane4dogs.org






T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  01-10-22.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, January 10, 2022 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Todd Barman; 
Phil Caravello; Al Farrow; Tom Majewski; and Tom Robinson 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning 
Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests: Lisa Zovar; Jeffrey Boness; Catalina Ortega and Luke Campion 
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of December 13, 2021.  


Caravello stated a correction is needed at #3 Council representative report, it should state 
Luca’s Pizza not Luigi’s Pizza. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as corrected, 2nd by Caravello.   Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


3. Council Representative Report.  Caravello stated Ordinance 29 of 2021 was approved. 
 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments.  Scheel gave an overview of the status of 
developments.  There were no questions. 
 


5. Façade improvements at 143 E. Main Street.  (Postponed from December 13, 2021) 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Robinson stated he went by the building and has no problem with the exterior colors. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the façade improvements as presented, 2nd by Farrow. 
 
Schumacher stated he is also ok with the existing colors. 
 
Barman stated the code only allows 3 different colors and it was previously brought up that 
the dark blue around the door was too dark. 
 
Majewski stated the only issue is there are 4 different colors. 
 
Motion carried 6-1 (Barman is opposed) 
 


6. Conditional use permit for a Group Daycare at 1424 US Highway 51-138 (Formerly 
Pizza Hut). 
Scheel gave an overview of the request.   







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
01/10/22 
Page 2 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  01-10-22.docx 


 


Barman stated this review appears to be just for the change of use not for the site plan and 
there may be a need for more playground area.  Mayor Swadley questioned if there are any 
requirements for the playground area.  Scheel stated there is no zoning requirement for the 
size of playground rather there may be State requirements for the daycare use. 
 
Schumacher questioned if the pavement would be staying under the playground area.  Scheel 
stated he is not sure. 
 
Barman questioned if the change of use triggered any requirements such as landscaping.  
Scheel stated it is just a change of use with no site plan changes so we believe there are no 
additional site requirements. 
 
Farrow noted this area is very busy with traffic. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 


 
 Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 


Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use 
permit resolution as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 
7. Site plan review for Stoughton High School Athletic Complex Improvements at 600 


Lincoln Avenue. 
Scheel explained the request.  


 
Barman asked for a summary of the stormwater management improvements.  Scheel stated 
there is a retention pond proposed at the east end of the site and the applicant has provided a 
stormwater management and erosion control plan that are currently being reviewed by Dane 
County.   
 
Mayor Swadley explained the history of planning for these improvements and the positive 
impacts. 
 
Caravello noted there are ADA improvements listed on the plan.  Scheel stated it appears 
accessible routes are being brought into compliance. 
 
Schumacher has concerns about the grade in the northwest area of the site. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the High School Athletic Complex as presented, 2nd by 
Schumacher.   Motion carried unanimously. 


 
8. Site plan review for an outdoor patio area at La Cantina, 620 Nygaard Street. 


Scheel explained the request. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
01/10/22 
Page 3 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  01-10-22.docx 


 


Catalina Ortega was available to answer questions. 
 
Mayor Swadley asked if alcohol was planned for the patio area.  Catalina Ortega stated she is 
working with the City to gain approval for serving alcohol. 
 
Barman questioned the type of fence is planned.  Catalina stated it will be metal but not 
chain-link. 
 
Farrow asked if there are plans to add lighting or have music outdoors with the residential 
uses across the street.  Catalina stated there are no plans for lighting or music but possibly 
music for Cinco de Mayo. 
 
Mayor Swadley questioned if a permit is required for the fence.  Scheel stated yes. 
 
Schumacher asked if the fence would have a gate for fire exiting.  Catalina stated there would 
be some type of gate. 
 
Schumacher questioned if there is ample greenspace to add the concrete patio area.  Scheel 
stated it appears there is ample greenspace to meet code. 
 
Motion by Barman to approve the outdoor dining area as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   
Motion carried unanimously. 


 
9. Extra-territorial land division at 2069 Williams Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs. 


Scheel explained the request. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the land division 
request as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


10. Awning and signage improvements at 177 W. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Luke Campion stated the plan is to replace the awning and add signage. 
 
Barman questioned the type of awning material.  Luke Campion stated it is a type of denim. 
 
Barman suggested making the sign bigger so customers can see it across the street.  Luke 
Campion plans to check on making the sign bigger. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to approve the awning and signage as presented, 2nd by Majewski.   
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


11. Future agenda items. 
Stone Crest development; Eighth Street Development; Teigen Farm development; Riverfront 
Redevelopment SIP; KPW Expansion; 2525 Jackson Street GDP. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
01/10/22 
Page 4 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  01-10-22.docx 


 


12. Adjournment. 
Motion by Robinson to adjourn at 6:48 pm, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  02-07-22.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, February 7, 2022 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Todd Barman; 
Phil Caravello and Al Farrow. 
Members Absent: Tom Majewski and Tom Robinson 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning 
Administrator 
Guests: Curt Brink; Matt Brink; Abbie Moilien; Rebecca de Boer; Brian Reed; Doug Hursh; 
Terrance McMillan and Sarah Ebert 
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Planned Development – Specific Implementation Plan for Riverfront Redevelopment – 


Phase One (Buildings 1 & 2) 
Curt Brink introduced the request. 
 
Brian Reed gave an overview presentation of the project plan. 
 
Mayor Swadley questioned whether the larger trees will block the view of the Power Plant.  
Brian Reed stated there are smaller trees along that side of Wagon Works Way.  Scheel 
stated the City Forester will be choosing and installing the terrace trees. 
 
Mayor Swadley asked if there were any rendering views toward the river.  Brian Reed stated 
they have not yet prepared any rendering views in that direction. 
 
Barman likes the proposed signage above the entrance canopies. 
 
Caravello questioned the type of trees proposed for along the trail.  Abbie Moilien stated the 
City Forester will choose the type of trees along the trail. 
 
Schumacher stated he likes the overall plan and choice of plantings. 
 
Al Farrow questioned the landscaping principles used. 
 
Barman asked what the area between the buildings is proposed to be used for.  Brian Reed 
stated it is mostly private terrace areas for 2 ground floor apartments in building 2. 
 
Scheel gave an overview of the staff review and resolutions. 
 
Mayor Swadley questioned the timeline.  Curt Brink stated they are on track to close on the 
property on February 28th. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
02/07/22 
Page 2 of 2 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  02-07-22.docx 


 


Motion by Schumacher to approve the SIP resolution as presented, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


3. Future agenda items.  Regular meeting is next Monday night. 
 


4. Adjournment. 
Motion by Barman to adjourn at 6:35 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 





		ADPD00D.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, February 7, 2022 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting



		ADPE434.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, January 10, 2022 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting



		ADP2BA1.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, February 7, 2022 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting












S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2022\Status of development 021422.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 
 
 


 
Date:  February 8, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commission Members 
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Status of Current Developments  
 
Status of Development: 
 Sinobec Resources – Landscaping and lighting  
 Stoughton Utilities Substation on McComb Road – Paving left to do 
 Grosso Commercial Buildings – 441 Glacier Moraine Drive – Buildings under construction 
 Mixed Use Building at 700 Nygaard Street –Landscaping left to do in spring. 
 Riverfront Development – SIP approved 
 KPW Lot 4 (2501 Jackson Street) Under construction  
 Dvorak - 51 West Development – Final Plat not yet recorded, GDP not yet effective 
 Dollar Tree – Landscaping, lighting, dumpster enclosure and stormwater non-compliances 
 Pizza Hut - 1400 US Hwy 51 – Landscaping left to do is spring 
 314 W. Main Street – Began construction 
 Weebleworld 2nd building – under construction 


 
 
 
 


 
 







City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2022 
 
 


COMMERCIAL 
Building Activity 
Type 


# of Permits 
January 2022 


January $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 
Values 


Addition 0 $0 0 $0 $0 
New 
Construction - 
Building 


0 $0 0 $0 $0 


New 
Construction - 
Other 


0 $0 0 $0 $0 


Remodel/Repair 10 $1,365 10 $1,365 $115,663 
Zoning 6 $1,495 6 $1,495 $20,065 
Grand Total 16 $2,860 16 $2,860 $135,728 


 
 


RESIDENTIAL 
Building Activity 
Type 


# of Permits 
January 2022 


January $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 
Values 


Addition 1 $215 1 $215 $45,000 
New  
Construction -  
Dwelling 


2 $3,487 2 $3,487 $722,000 


New 
Construction - 
Other  


0 $0 0 $0 $0 


Remodel/Repair 22 $1,900 22 $1,900 $181,116 
Zoning 4 $820 4 $820 $100 
Grand Total 29 $6,422 29 $6,422 $948,216 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


For more information, please contact: Desi Weum – Administrative Assistant 
(608) 646-0159 or dweum@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 







City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2022 
 


 
 


 
 


0


0


0


3


0


0


5


36


6


3


0


1


0


2


0


0


10


22


6


4


0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwelling


Commercial New Construction- Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits Issued


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Monthly Permit Data


January-22


January-21


0


0


0


3


0


0


5


36


6


3


0


1


0


2


0


0


10


22


6


4


0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwellings


Commercial New Construction - Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits 


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Yearly Permits Issued to Date


YEAR 2022


YEAR 2021








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\021422\PC Info\78-920 Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  February 2, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the February 14, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


Common Council Meetings of February 22 and March 8, 2022. 
 
Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-920, Cost of Abating Zoning Violations. 
This ordinance amendment is proposed by City Attorney Matt Dregne to clear up the cost of zoning 
abatement language.  A public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance 
is provided.   
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning 78-920.doc 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Virtual Public Hearing on Monday, February 
14, 2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a proposed 
zoning ordinance amendment to the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances, Section 78-920.  
The proposed amendment is related to abating zoning violations.   
 
See additional information at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
You can join the meeting via Zoom or Phone below: 
https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 991 8902 8139  Passcode: 389293 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 
5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written comments will be forwarded on to the 
“Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.   
 
     
Published January 13 and 20, 2022 Hub 



https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





Page 1 of 1 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Section 78-920(3)(c) of the Stoughton Municipal Code relating to  


the cost of abating zoning violations. 


Committee Action:    


 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -   - 2022 Date Introduced:   


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Section 78-920(3)(c) of the Stoughton Municipal Code is amended to provide as follows: 


 
Cost of abatement. In addition to any forfeiture other penalty imposed by this subchapter for a 
violation of the provisions of this chapter, the cost of abating a violation of this chapter per 
subsections (a) and/or (b), above, may shall be collected as a debt from the owner of the property 
on which said violation has occurred. An account of the expenses incurred by the city to abate the 
violation shall be kept and such expenses may shall be charged to and paid by the property 
owner. Notice of the bill for abatement of the violation shall be mailed to the last known address of 
said property owner by Registered Mail, and shall be payable within 30 calendar days from the 
receipt thereof. Within 60 days after such costs and expenses are incurred and remain unpaid, the 
city clerk shall enter such charges onto the tax roll as a special tax as provided by State Statute 
66.0627(2)615(5). 


 


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\021422\PC Info\78-904 Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  January 31, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the February 14, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


Common Council Meetings of February 22 and March 8, 2022. 
 
Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-904, Zoning Permit. 
This ordinance amendment is proposed to update the language related to zoning permits including 
the requirement to pay double fees in the event a project is started prior to permit issuance.  Double 
fees has been approved previously by resolution of the permit fees.  A public hearing and 
recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance is provided.   
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning 78-904.doc 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Virtual Public Hearing on Monday, February 


14, 2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a proposed 


zoning ordinance amendment to the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances, Section 78-904.  


The proposed amendment is related to zoning permits.   


 


See additional information at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 


 


You can join the meeting via Zoom or Phone below: 


https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09 


 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 991 8902 8139  Passcode: 389293 


 


If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 
5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written comments will be forwarded on to the 
“Organizer” and Commissioners. 


 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-


0421.   


 


     


Published January 20 and 27, 2022 Hub 



https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\Amend Section 78-904.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Amending Zoning Code Section 78-904 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee 
Action:    


Plan Commission recommends approval  - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -   - 2022 Date Introduced:   


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 
Sec. 78-904. - Zoning permit.  
(1)  Application. Applications for a zoning permit shall be made to the zoning administrator on 


forms furnished by the administrator and shall include the following where pertinent and 
necessary for proper review:  


(a)  Name and address of the applicant, owner of the site, architect, professional engineer and 
contractor.  


(b)  Description of the subject site by address lot, block, and recorded subdivision or by metes 
and bounds; address of the subject site; type of structure; existing and proposed operation or 
use of the structure or site; number of employees; and the zoning district within which the 
subject site lies.  


(c)  Detailed site plan or if required by the City Zoning Administrator, a Pplat of survey prepared 
by a land surveyor registered in Wisconsin showing the location, boundaries, dimensions, 
uses and size of the following: subject site; existing and proposed structures; existing and 
proposed easements; streets and other public ways; off-street parking, loading areas, and 
driveways; existing highway access restrictions; high water, channel floodway, and 
floodplain boundaries; and existing and proposed street, side, and rear yards. In addition, the 
plat of survey shall show type, slope and boundaries of soils shown in the Dane County Soils 
Survey prepared by the United States Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service.  


(d)  Additional information as may be required by the plan commission or zoning administrator.  
(e)  Fees paid as receipt from the city treasurer in an amount specified in subsection (2) of this 


section.  
(f)  A zoning permit shall be granted or denied by the zoning administrator in writing within 30 


days of the complete application submittal., and If permit is granted the applicant shall post 
such permit in a conspicuous place at the site such as an inside front window of the home. 
The permit shall expire within four twelve months from the date of permit issuance unless 
work has been started.  As long as the project has been started within the twelve months after 
the date of permit issuance, the permit is valid for twenty-four months after the date of permit 
issuance. equal to ten percent of the dollar amount of the permits has been completed or 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\Amend Section 78-904.docx 
 


within 18 months after the issuance of the permit if the structure for which a permit issued is 
not 75 percent completed as measured by the dollar amount of the permit. Once expired, the 
The applicant shall reapply for a zoning permit before recommencing work on the structure. 
Any permit issued in conflict with the provisions of the chapter shall be null and void.  


(2)  Fees.  
(a)  An application fee is required and is set by city resolution.  
(b)  Zoning permit fees do not include and are in addition to building permit fees established by 


the city building code.  
(c)  Fees for conditional uses shall be computed in accordance with section 78-905 of this 


chapter.  
(d)  Fees for amendments shall be in accordance with section 78-902 of this chapter.  
(ec)  A triple double fee may shall be charged by the zoning administrator if work is started before 


a permit is applied for and issued. Such triple fee shall not release the applicant from full 
compliance with this chapter nor from prosecution for violation of this chapter.  


(f)  Fees for written determinations by the zoning administrator shall be set by city 
resolution. 


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
      Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


       Candee Christen, City Clerk 












T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\021422\PC Info\6-16 Ord Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  January 31, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the February 14, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


Common Council Meetings of February 22 and March 8, 2022. 
 
Proposed creation of ordinance section 6-16, Breeding or Possession of Cats and Dogs for 
Research or Experimentation Prohibited. 
This ordinance amendment is proposed to create a ban on possession of cats and dogs for research 
or experimentation.  The organization called Dane4Dogs reached out to the City about this type of 
use in another area of Wisconsin.  A review was done by the City Attorney (see provided memo).  
A recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance is provided.   
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


L:\DOCS\005649\003191\MEMOS\3SS604302.DOCX 
0113221620 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Confidential Memorandum 
Privileged Lawyer-Client Communication 
          
 
To  Michael Stacey, City of Stoughton Zoning Administrator 
 
From  Jane Landretti 
 
Date  January 13, 2022   
 
Re  Animal Research Ordinance  
              
 
You asked me to consider whether your proposed animal research ordinance is a 
permissible regulation under the laws governing the City.  The proposed ordinance would 
restrict the maintenance or operation of place or premises that uses, breeds or possesses 
cats or dogs for medical, surgical or chemical investigation or experimentation.   
 
My conclusion is that the City may enact this animal research ordinance under its police 
power authority.   
 
Use of Police powers 
Other Wisconsin communities that have enacted a similar ordinance.  Most have used 
police powers rather than zoning powers.  My opinion is that the police power approach is 
also the best option for the City of Stoughton.   
 
The City’s grant of police power authority is broad, and applies except where the statutes 
specifically provide otherwise.  Among other powers granted to the council, it shall have 
the power to act for the government and good order of the city, for its commercial benefit, 
and for the health, safety, and welfare of the public.  Wis. Stat. § 62.11(5).   
 
Preemption 
My opinion is that the City’s police power on animal research is not preempted by any state 
law.  Other types of animal facilities trigger state licensing requirements in Wis. Admin. 
Code chapter 16.  Those include animal shelters.  A facility the City would regulate under 
this ordinance is not an animal shelter because it is not a facility that is operated to promote 
the welfare, protection, and humane treatment of animal.  Wis. Admin. Code § ATCP 







L:\DOCS\005649\003191\MEMOS\3SS604302.DOCX 
0113221620 2 


16.01(3).  A dog breeder also triggers state licensing requirements.  A person the City 
would regulate under this ordinance is not a dog breeder unless he or she sold at least 25 
dogs from more than three litters within a license year.  Wis. Admin. Code § ATCP 
16.01(5).  Similarly, a dog breeding facility also triggers licensing requirements.  A facility 
the City would regulate with this ordinance would not be a dog breeding facility because 
it would not sell at least 25 dogs in a license year.  Wis. Admin. Code § ATCP 16.01(6).   
In short, the persons and facilities within the City’s proposed ordinance fall outside the 
state licensing requirements.  
 
Other state statutes that deal with animals also do not apply to an animal research facility 
and so do not preempt the City’s police power authority.  Chapter 951 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes deals with crimes against animals.  But it excludes research from its scope.  Wis. 
Stat. § 951.015(3).  
 
Another statute deals with transportation of animals across state lines.  Any officer or 
pound with custody of an unclaimed dog may release the dog for scientific or educational 
purposes.  Wis. Stat. § 174.13(2).  Only a person licensed under the federal animal welfare 
laws can send living cat or dog across state lines for any medical, surgical or chemical 
experiment. Wis. Stat. § 174.13(4).  As with other statewide requirements, the proposed 
ordinance does not present a conflict.   
 
Conclusion 
None of the statutes or statewide licensing requirements preempt the City police power to 
enact the proposed animal research ordinance.  My opinion it is that the ordinance is a valid 
use of the City police powers. Wis. Stat. § 62.11(5). 
 
  
 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 6\Sec 6-16  Research Puppy Ban.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


CREATING SECTION 6-16 OF THE STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL CODE 


 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval  - 0  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O -  - 2022 Date 


Introduced:  


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1:  Section 6-16 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code is created as follows: 


 


6-16 BREEDING OR POSSESSION OF CATS OR DOGS FOR RESEARCH     OR 


EXPERIMENTATION PROHIBITED 


 


(1) No natural person, corporation, Limited Liability Company or other legal entity shall 


maintain or operate any place or premises within the City of Stoughton where cats or dogs are used 


for the purpose of medical, surgical or chemical investigation or experimentation. 


 


(2) No natural person, corporation, Limited Liability Company or other legal entity shall 


maintain or operate any place or premises within the City of Stoughton where cats or dogs     are bred 


or possessed for the purpose of sending the cats or dogs outside the City for the purpose of medical, 


surgical or chemical investigation or experimentation. 


 


(3) Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to limit the ability of the owner of a cat or 


dog residing in the City of Stoughton to enroll their permitted pet cat or pet dog in clinical trials which 


may provide benefit to the animal. 


 


(4) PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS.  Any natural person or any officer of a corporation, 


member of a limited liability company, trustee of a trust person having control of any other legal entity 


who shall violate or fail or refuse to comply with this section shall be subject to section 1-3 penalty 


provisions, however the forfeiture for the first adjudication shall be a minimum of $250 and the 


forfeiture for the second and subsequent adjudications shall be a minimum of $500. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Section 2:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and publication. 


 


 


 


Dates  


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 


 


 








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\021422\PC Info\318 Forrest CUP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  January 31, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the February 14, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


Common Council Meeting of February 22, 2022. 
 
Proposed conditional use permit request to allow an Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use 
(Fitness Center) at 318 S. Forrest Street. 
This request is to allow a Fitness Center use to be located at 318 S. Forrest Street.  The use has been 
in operation for some time but the tenant was unaware of the permit requirement.  A public hearing 
and recommendation to Council is necessary.  The resolution and related materials are provided.   
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\318 S Forrest Street CUP 2022.docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approving a Conditional Use Permit request for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (Fitness 
Center) at 318 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


Committee Action: Plan Commission recommends approval  - 0 


Fiscal Impact: None. 
 


File Number: R- -2022 Date Introduced: 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, on February 14, 2022 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and 
reviewed the proposed conditional use permit application for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use 
(Fitness Center) at 318 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


• The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan; 


• The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of- 
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development; 


• The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


• The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property; 


• The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 
will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 
now therefore 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\318 S Forrest Street CUP 2022.docx 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (Fitness Center) at 318 S. Forrest Street is hereby approved as 
presented. 
 


 
 


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote    


 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 


 
 


 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 
 


 
Council Action:  Override Vote    


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Virtual Public Hearing on Monday, February 14, 
2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a Conditional Use 
Permit Application by James Brooks.  The applicant is requesting conditional use approval for a 
Fitness Center at 318 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589.    The property description is as follows: 
Parcel Number: 281/0511-081-2228-2 
Description for tax purposes:  ORIGINAL PLAT LOT 8 BLOCK 27 
*This property description is for tax purposes. It may be abbreviated. For the complete legal 
description please refer to the deed.  
 
See additional information including location map at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-
commission/ 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799     Meeting ID: 991 8902 8139 Passcode: 389293 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 
5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written comments will be forwarded on to the 
“Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.   
 
     
Published January 20 and 27, 2022 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Primal - 318 S Forrest Notice 2022.doc 



https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





PRIMAL
FITNESS







City of Stoughton Procedural Checklist for Conditional Use Review and
Approval


(Requirements per Section 79-905)


Prepared By: James R. Brooks
Owner of: Primal Strength and Fitness LLC


II c – A written description of the proposed conditional use describing the
type of activities, buildings and structures proposed for the subject
property and their general locations.


Primal Strength and Fitness LLC is a privately owned fitness facility that offers a
high quality environment and atmosphere for its members. Programs include but
are not limited to:


● Personal Training
● Group Fitness Training
● High School/College Athlete Training
● Powerlifting Training
● Bootcamps
● Strongman
● Competitive Events


Company Location and Facilities:


Primal Strength and Fitness LLC will be located in Stoughton, WI at 318 S.
Forrest St - Stoughton, WI 53589.


Facilities and Services


Primal Strength and Fitness LLC members will have access to the following
strength training equipment:


● Squat Racks
● Bench-press benches
● Deadlift Platforms
● Dumbbells
● Kettlebells
● Medicine Balls
● Flat Benches
● Lat Pulldown Machines
● 45 pound Olympic bars
● Olympic Weight Plates (various sizes)







● Resistance Bands
● Airdyne Bikes
● Tires (various sizes)
● Sledgehammers
● Prowler
● TRX Systems


Competitive Edge:
The competitive advantage of Primal Strength and Fitness LLC is the culture that
is created in the facility. Members will feel safe to try new exercises, without the
on-lookers of commercial gym members. Members will feel safe to make
mistakes and try again, with our “always do your best” motto. In addition, the
owner and trainers have a wealth of knowledge, “time under the bar” and
experience to help guide the inexperienced to the most experienced fitness
enthusiast. We will also plan monthly seminars, focusing on specific movements
such as, but not limited to:


● Bench Press
● Squat
● Deadlift
● Strongman
● Martial Arts
● Healthy Cooking
● Weight Management
● Circuit Training
● Mud Run Training


In Summary:


Primal Strength and Fitness LLC will offer a variety of strength and fitness
services to the residents of Stoughton in the downtown district.







II d -  A site plan (conforming to the  requirements of Section 78-908(3)) of
the subject property as proposed for development OR if the proposed
conditional use is a large development (per Sections 78-205 (11)) or a group
development (per Section 78-205(12)) a proposed preliminary plat or
conceptual plat mat be substituted for the required site plan, provided said
plat contains all information required on said site plan per Section 78-908.


6. Projected number of residents, employees, and daily customers;


RESPONSE: I am now in my 8th year of business and do not anticipate hiring
employees, due to the nature of having a 24 hour facility.
In response to daily customers: I project daily customers to range from 1-30
within the working hours of the facility.


7. Proposed amount of dwelling units, floor area, impervious surface area,
and landscape surface area, and resulting site density, floor area ratio,
impervious surface area ratio, and landscape surface area ratio;


RESPONSE: This building occupies approximately 12,000sqft.


8. Operational considerations relating to hours of operation, projected
normal and peak water usage, sanitary sewer or septic loadings, and traffic
generation;


RESPONSE:
PRIMAL Strength and Fitness is a 24 hour facility for keyfob members. Jimmy
is available to help you during the hours listed below for questions, keyfobs,


tours and information.


If you want to visit, please see the staffed hours.


Monday - NO STAFFED HOURS


Tuesday - 5:30-7:00pm


Wednesday - NO STAFFED HOURS


Thursday - 5:30-7:00pm


Friday - NO STAFFED HOURS


Saturday - 7:00-11:00am


Sunday - 7:00-11:00am







9. Operational considerations relating to potential nuisance creation
pertaining to noncompliance with the performance standards addressed in
article VIII including street access, traffic visibility, parking, loading,
exterior storage, exterior lighting, vibration, noise, air pollution, odor,
electromagnetic radiation, glare and heat, fire and explosion, toxic or
noxious materials, waste materials, drainage, and hazardous materials. If
no such nuisances will be created (as indicated by complete and
continuous compliance with the provisions of article VIII), then the
statement "The proposed development shall comply with all requirements
of Article VIII." shall be provided;


RESPONSE:
A. I do not foresee any noncompliance issues with any of the performance


standards in article VIII.
B. The proposed development will comply with all requirements of Article VIII


and conform to all operational consideration standards.


10. Exterior building and fencing materials (sections 78-716 and 78-718);


RESPONSE: All exterior building and fencing will be maintained by the property
owner - Steven Metzler.


11. Possible future expansion and related implications for 1 through 10,
above, and: Any other information pertinent to adequate understanding by
the plan commission of the intended use and its relation to nearby
properties.


RESPONSE: it is my plan to occupy 318 S. Forrest St with an initial lease of 3
years - with the option to renew at the end of the three year term.


Other information:
The intended use is for strength and fitness training. We hope to serve the
residents of Stoughton by providing high quality, results-based strength and
fitness programs for every-persons’ needs. Our use of this property will be a
fantastic addition to the neighborhood, by providing a local, privately owned,
“small gym with big results,” culture. We hope to be able to educate and serve
the residents of Stoughton using a laser focus approach to health and wellness.







II e – Written justification for the proposed conditional use:
Indicating reasons why the Applicant believes the proposed conditional
use is appropriate with the recommendations of the City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan, particularly as evidenced by compliance with the
standards set out in Section 78-905 (4)


After careful review of the Comprehensive Plan of Stoughton, I (James R.
Brooks; Owner of Primal Strength and Fitness LLC) believe that my business will
indeed assist in the health and wellness of the residents in Stoughton.


Trends and Inferences:


Population Trends and Projections: The average increase in residents of
Stoughton is projected to grow by 1.237% each year and reach a population
growth of 16,798 by year 2025.


Inference: with this expected population growth, the residents of the City of
Stoughton will undoubtedly seek ways to serve their health and wellness needs,
as more public health knowledge becomes available. It is apparent everywhere,
from grocery stores to restaurants, that more public health knowledge is within
reach. Within the City of Stoughton, Primal Strength and Fitness LLC will assist
in giving residents a choice in how to best serve their strength and fitness needs.


Demographic Trends: Using Table 3 on Page 9 of the Comprehensive Plan, it is
noted that the median age in 2000 of the residents of the City of Stoughton was
older than the county but slightly younger than the state. The table further
explains that the median age in the City of Stoughton was 35.2 in 2000 with a
percentage of 28.3% under 18 and 52.8% female population.


Inference and Planning: At Primal Strength and Fitness LLC we serve any and all
populations and demographics. Most recently, the highest interest groups in our
programs have been some of my peers (ages 32-40) and youth athletes. We also
have a program called “Iron Maidens”  Our “Iron Maidens”  program is an all
female powerlifting program that helps to break the gender bias of weight
training. Our program has recently generated a high interest level with many of
our potential clients. In addition, we feel that many mid 30-40 aged persons will
be interested in our programs. I personally believe that public health knowledge
is reaching out to many adults, which in turn will influence the residents of the
City of Stoughton to reach out and find appropriate strength and fitness options.







Community Survey – Page 11
The most important reasons for living in the City of Stoughton:


1. Small City Atmosphere
2. Proximity to Relatives and Friends
3. Affordable House or Lot
4. Self Contained Full Service City
5. Good Schools


Inferences: From reading this section, it is apparent that the residents of the City
of Stoughton value their community. One can also determine that once you live in
Stoughton, you keep your commerce in Stoughton. One component of my
business model is creating a culture of belonging. When you choose a
membership at Primal Strength and Fitness LLC, you not only become a gym
member, you become part of a strength community of support. Our name says it
all: PRIMAL
Powerful
Respectful
Intense
Muscular
Athletic
Lifestyle
It is clear that the residents of the City of Stoughton prefer a certain type of
lifestyle in this community. Primal Strength and Fitness LLC will serve to create a
community of health, strength and fitness within a community.


Community Survey – Page 13
Desired Types of New Commercial Development:
When asked about new commercial development, 27% of the respondents
indicated neighborhood commercial and office usage, while 22% indicated
community commercial uses.


Inferences: Almost half (49%) of the respondents indicated neighborhood and
community use as the types of development desired. This demonstrates a need
more a neighborhood fitness center that is based in a community. Again, as I
have expressed before, our gym and fitness facility will fit seamlessly within a
community to provide the best health, strength and fitness opportunities for the
City of Stoughton residents.







Vision Setting Workshop – Page 15
“Have Planned Controlled Development that Preserves Small Town Character”
The residents of the City of Stoughton have expressed interest in business
development that: “encourage more local businesses and community-wide
activities.”


Inferences: At Primal Strength and Fitness LLC, I vision our fitness facility
working “hand in glove” with the community and forming partnerships with local
businesses using our many programs and facilities. Using these programs, we
will partner with local City of Stoughton businesses and essentially become their
“Health and Wellness” department by working with employees and creating
healthy outcomes in a business setting. We also will work with local organizations
and sponsor youth sports teams, hold quarterly fund-raisers for local charities
and work toward becoming an organization in the City of Stoughton that prides
ourselves in helping others.


III Justification of the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment for
Applicant Use


1. How is the proposed conditional use (the use in general,
independent of its location) in harmony with the purposes, goals,
objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan, the Zoning Ordinance and any other plan,
program or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to
the official notice by the city?


Stoughton Comprehensive Plan – Page 20:


Overall Planning Goals:


Preserve and enhance Stoughton’s “small city” character and heritage


Primal Strength and Fitness LLC is a privately owned fitness facility located in
Stoughton Wisconsin.  Primal Strength and Fitness LLC is a small,
non-commercial gym catering to the health and wellness needs of the people of
Stoughton, Wisconsin. “We prepare people for life through a rigorous
strength and fitness program.” Primal Strength and Fitness LLC’s focus is the
“every-person” of Stoughton and the outlying areas. The “every-person” refers to
anyone who may be curious about fitness, weight management, and weight
training, but doesn’t know where to start. We offer a practical and safe approach
to lifestyle change through strength and fitness.  In fact, our name says it all!
PRIMAL is an acronym for:


● Powerful
● Respectful







● Intense
● Muscular
● Athletic
● Lifestyle


2. How is the proposed conditional use, in its specific location in harmony
with the purposed, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, the Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan,
program or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official
notice by the city?


Overall Planning Goals
Page 20: City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan


We Will Maintain Quality Community Facilities and Services
Vision:


All Primal Strength and Fitness LLC members will train in a high quality, focused
atmosphere based on a culture of health and wellness. Each member will
develop the knowledge, skills and values necessary for life long health and
wellness. The impact of our collective efforts will fundamentally impact the future
of each member and their families.
1.1 Core Values:


At Primal Strength and Fitness LLC we practice a set of Core Values based on
G.O.A.L.S


● Go above and beyond: coaches, staff, and members put in whatever
time it takes to get the job done. The number of hours put into
development, exceed the hours on the job. We are committed to personal
development each and every day with each and every member.


● Opportunities for teaching and learning: We are mindful of ways to
capture a moment to foster a learning experience. We are very purposeful
in the interactions with our members, making each interaction a purposeful
opportunity for learning.


● Always do your best: “I will not rest until my good is better and my better
is best.” We strive for members to have the best experience possible. We
ensure that we have high expectations for ourselves.







● Lead by example: We model the type of behavior we expect to see from
our members. We continually role model training sessions to create
positive outcomes. We always set and model high expectations with each
member.


● Supportive environment: We create a culture that is driven by the needs
of the members. Member needs become the focal point of planning as we
plan with each member in mind.  Members are supported in their fitness
and personal development.


3. Does the proposed conditional use, in its proposed location and as
depicted on the required site plan (see Section 78-905 (3) (d)), result in any
substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of
the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public
improvements, public property or rights of way, or other matters affecting
the public health, safety or general welfare, either as they now exist or as
they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other
plan, program, map ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
the official notice by the City or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide development?


RESPONSE: The proposed conditional use does not result in any undue or
adverse impact on nearby properties, character of the neighborhood or create
any environmental or traffic factors. Furthermore, there will be no affect on any
implementations of zoning ordinances.
The conditional use will positively affect the health and general welfare of the
neighborhood by providing a safe and effective physical fitness facility.


4. How does the proposed conditional use maintain the desired
consistency of land uses,  land use intensities and land use impacts as
related to the environs of the subject property.


RESPONSE: The consistency of the land will be maintained and will create no
impact on the environmental integrity of the land. The use will be consistent with
other small businesses conducting normal business in the downtown district.


5. Is the proposed conditional use located in an area that will be adequately
served by and will not impose an undue burden on any of the
improvements, facilities or utilities or services provided by public agencies
serving the subject property?


RESPONSE: The conditional use 318 S. Forrest St. will not pose an undue
burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services by public agencies.







The utilities will be at a median or below what other similar businesses will use
on a yearly basis.


6. Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use
outweigh all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional
use (as identified in Subsections 78-905(4)(b)1.5.), after taking into
consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements
recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts?


RESPONSE: I do not foresee or predict any adverse impacts of the proposed
conditional use. In-fact, I predict that the public health benefits of this conditional
use permit will greatly benefit the public health. Through careful strength and
fitness programming, we hope to shape the way the City of Stoughton residents
view fitness training.


Thank you for the opportunity to share my information. Please let me know if you
require any additional documentation or information.


Sincerely,


James R. Brooks
Primal Strength and Fitness LLC











CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT   DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning     fax: (608) 873-5519 


 
      


January 11, 2022 
 
James Brooks 
318 S. Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
 
Dear Mr. Brooks: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed conditional use for a fitness center at 318 S. Forrest 
Street, Stoughton – application provided 1/10/2022.  As noted, additional information may be 
required or shown on the plans.  A public hearing is planned for the February 14, 2022 Plan 
Commission meeting of which a notice will be sent to you.  You and/or a representative will need to 
attend the public hearing.  It is anticipated that the Common Council will act on the Conditional Use 
request at their February 22, 2022 meeting.   
 
1. The property at 318 S. Forrest Street is currently zoned CB – Central Business.  An Indoor 


Commercial Entertainment use (Fitness Center) is allowed with a conditional use permit 
within the CB district.   
 


2. Ordinance section 78-905(5)(c) provides the following criteria which the Zoning Administrator 
may use to evaluate the conditional use application to determine whether the request is in 
harmony with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan: 


 
a) Is the proposed conditional use (the use in general, independent of its location) in 


harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of 
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city?   
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


b) Is the proposed conditional use (in its specific location) in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive plan, 
this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the city?  
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


c) Does the proposed conditional use, in its proposed location and as depicted on the 
required site plan (see subsection (4)(d), above), result in a substantial or undue adverse 
impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, 
traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other 
matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the 
provisions of this chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or 
ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city or other 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development?  We do not see any 
substantial or major adverse impacts related to the group daycare use. 


d) Does the proposed conditional use maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property?  
The use is consistent with the Planned Business zoning classification.     


e) Is the proposed conditional use located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property?  The use should not 
impose a burden on utilities or services.   


f) Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use (as identified in subsections 
1. through 5., above), after taking into consideration the applicant's proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts? No adverse 
impacts have been identified. 


 
3. The Comprehensive Plan, future land use map designates the property at 318 S. Forrest Street as 


Central Business.  The zoning and proposed use are consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan. 


 


4. Relevant site plan review and approval procedural requirements per zoning section 78-908 are 
as follows: 


A. Written description of the intended use.  Provided 
 


5. Regulations applicable to an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use is as follows: 
• Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all property 


borders abutting residentially zoned property (See zoning section 78-610). N/A 
• If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned property, no 


customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 feet, or as far as possible, 
of a residentially zoned property.  N/A 
 


6. There are no parking requirements in the Central Business district. 
 


7. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan, application and fee prior to installation.  
Already taken care of. 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator  
 


 
s:\planning\property log folder\318 s forrest street\cup request 2022\fitness center cup - site plan 2022.doc 












T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\021422\PC Info\Lot 18 GDP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  February 2, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the February 14, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and Common 


Council Meetings of February 22 and March 8, 2022  
 
Request to rezone the property at 51 West Development, Lot 18 from Rural Holding to 
Planned Development – General Development Plan (GDP)  
In an attempt to move approvals for Lot 18 along, the applicant has requested to rezone the property 
to PD-GDP.  The 51 West development has a pending PD-GDP zoning which includes Lot 18 but 
that rezoning is being held up by contingencies which will not allow a Specific Implementation Plan 
(SIP) to move forward for Lot 18.  This attempt will allow approval of the GDP for Lot 18 without 
all of the development conditions so they can then move forward with the SIP submittal.  A public 
hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance, staff review and rezoning 
documents are provided. 
 
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Approving a General Development Plan for Lot 18  


within 51 West Development 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval  – 0  
Fiscal Impact:       Increased Tax Base and Park Impact Fees 
File Number: O -    - 2022 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 
 


 
RECITALS 


 
A. Lakestone Properties (the “Applicant”) has requested that Lot 18 within the currently 


unrecorded Plat of 51 West Development (“Lot 18”) be rezoned from Rural Holding to 
Planned Development.  The Applicant has submitted a General Development Plan (the 
“GDP”) for Lot 18, attached as Exhibit A. 
 


B. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory framework 
designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic design in the 
City by allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in the development 
of land while insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  The comparable zoning district for the land proposed 
to be zoned PD-Planned Development, used for establishing base-line zoning requirements 
and identifying needed flexibility is MR -24 Multi-Family Residential. 
 


C. On February 14, 2022, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing 
regarding Applicant’s proposed Planned Development zoning and the GDP.  The public 
hearing was preceded by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by 
law.  
 


D. The Plan Commission found that the proposed Planned Development zoning is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the proposed 
rezoning and the GDP, subject to certain conditions.   
 


E. The Common Council has considered the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and finds 
that, subject to certain conditions, the proposed Planned Development zoning and General 
Development Plan are consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and have 
the potential for enhancing the use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax base. 
 
 







2 


ORDINANCE 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 
forth in full. 
 


2. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 6 below, the zoning classification of Lot 18 is 
changed from Rural Holding to Planned Development, and the GDP is approved. 
 


3. No part of Lot 18 may be developed until a Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) has been 
approved by the City Plan Commission. 
 


4. The following flexibilities to the otherwise applicable requirements are approved: 
 


• Multiple buildings on a single lot; 
• Principle building separation of 20 feet(40 feet typical); 
• Multiplex and apartments up to 32.2 units/acre by right (up to 160 units); 
• Impervious area of up to 53%; 
• Minimum landscape surface ratio of 47%; 
• Minimum lot area of 1,357 square feet per dwelling unit; 
• Maximum building height of 45 feet at the median of the roof; 
• Maximum 50 square feet in area for ground sign. (Measured per section 78-


817); 
• Maximum lighting intensity level of 0.5 foot-candles (FC) at the property line 


except for the following: 
• At driveway access to property where targeted average level is 0.8 foot-


candles with a range of 0.5 – 1.5 FC. 
 


5. Lot 18 shall be developed and used in full compliance with all standards and requirements 
in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply to lands zoned MR-24 Multi Family Residential, 
except as flexibilities are expressly authorized in this ordinance.  Chapter 78 of the City 
Code, the General Development Plan, this Ordinance and the approved Specific 
Implementation Plan will constitute the zoning regulations for the property, and may be 
enforced as any zoning regulation in the City of Stoughton.  A copy of this Ordinance, the  
General Development Plan and the Specific Implementation Plan shall be maintained and 
kept on file by the City of Stoughton Planning Office.  
 


6. The zoning changes and approvals provided for in Section 4 above will not be effective 
until all of the following conditions have been satisfied: 
 
A. Applicant owns Lot 18; 
B. The Final Plat of 51 West has been approved and recorded; 







3 


C. All easements deemed necessary by the City or Stoughton Utilities to provide water, 
sanitary sewer, electric and other utility services needed to serve Lot 18 have been 
conveyed to the City. 


 
7. Notwithstanding the delayed effectiveness of the zoning change and approvals pursuant to 


Section 6, above, the Applicant may seek approval of a Specific Implementation Plan at 
any time after the adoption of this Ordinance.  
 


8. Any General Development Plan previously approved for all or any part of Lot 18 shall be 
null and void upon the adoption of this Ordinance. 
 


9. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law.   
 
 


 
Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\51 West Lot 18 GDP Ordinance-rjs - attorney reviewed.docx 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development


January 14, 2022 


GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 


FOR LOT 18 OF  


THE 51 WEST NEIGHBORHOOD 


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


Lakestone Properties, LLC 


EXHIBIT    A







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 2     


PROJECT TEAM 


LOT 18 PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 


 


Owner (future*):    


Lakestone Properties, LLC 


5910 Main Street, Suite 1, McFarland, WI 53558 


Contact: Brett Riemen, (608) 838-1800 


Email: brettreimen@lakestoneproperties.com 


Project Planner:   


JLA Architects & Planners 


311 E Chicago Street, Suite 240, Milwaukee, WI  53202 


Contact: Tami J McCullough, (414) 988-7534 


Email: tmccullough@jla-ap.com 


 


Project Civil Engineer: 


Quam Engineering, LLC 


4604 Sigglekow Road, Suite A, McFarland, WI 53558 


Contact: Ryan Quamm, (608) 838-7750 


Email: rquam@quamengineering.com 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


*Lakestone Properties, LLC has a signed Offer to Purchase for Lot 18 with Fifty One West, LLC. 


CONTENTS 


A. Comprehensive Plan Land Use Location Map………………..   3 


B. Vicinity Map.................................................................................   4 


C. Planned Development Written Description............................   5 


D. Development Standards........................................................... 12 


E. Conceptual Landscaping Plan................................................. 15 


F. Conceptual Signage Plan.......................................................... 16 


G. Building Types/Themes............................................................... 17 


 


APPENDIX 


Map with Owners within 300 feet ……………………………….. 19 


Mass Grading Plan …………………………………………………. 20 


 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 3     


A. LOCATION MAP 


Source: Map 3 (partial) of City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan 


LOT 18 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 4     


B. VICINTY MAP 


Source: City of Stoughton Zoning Map 


LOT 18 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 5     


C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION 


Project Area and Existing Conditions  


51 West Neighborhood 


The planned development for the overall project, to be known as 51 West,    


establishes the zoning requirements for portions of a 70.25-acre, mixed-use 


neighborhood located east and west of USH 51 and south of Rutland Dunn 


Town Line Road. The entire project area was annexed into the City of Stough-


ton in 2018 under RH (Rural Holding) zoning.   


The 51 West planned neighborhood incorporates five existing city parcels, in-


cluding two on the west side of USH 51 (051001185012 and 051001180412), and 


three on the east side (051106286522, 051106286012 and 051106285012). All five 


parcels are being farmed, excepting a pocket of woodlands along Rutland-


Dunn Town Line Road.  


The surrounding uses include: 


• Westside of USH 51: single-family/farmland/woodlands to the north; farmland 


the west; and commercial/industrial/single-family to the south.   


• Eastside of USH 51: farmland to the north; (rural) single-family to the east; and 


single family/duplex/ commercial to the south.  


 


Lot 18 


Lot 18 is one of several lots in this larger development referred to as 51 West 


and is part of city parcel (051106286522). It abuts USH 51 on the east side.       


Existing surrounding uses for Lot 18 are as listed above for Eastside of USH 51. 


Project Scope  


Lot 18 is one of nine Planned Development lots in the overall 51 West GDP.  


(See Figure #). All but two of these lots are multifamily residential.  


The 51 West Planned Development lots include: 


Lot 1 - 12 duplex residential units (2.26 acres) 


Lot 2 - 12 duplex residential units (2.12 acres) 


Lot 3 - 6 duplex residential units (1.06 acres) 


Lot 4 - 36 multifamily residential units (1.53 acres) 


Lot 5 - 96 multifamily residential units (3.75 acres) 


Lot 6 - 16 multifamily residential units (2.55 acres) 


Lot 16 - 1.8 acres commercial land 


Lot 17 - 11.88 acres commercial land 


Lot 18 - 160 multifamily residential units (4.97 acres) 


 


The developer’s goal and intent is to extend all utilities and corresponding  


public infrastructure and complete mass grading on the east side of USH 51 by 


Fall /Winter 2022.  This is of course, dependent upon the timing of negotiations 


and final  approvals of utility locations and other conditions of the GDP approv-


al for the 51 West Neighborhood with the City of Stoughton. 


 


A map of 51 West Neighborhood with requested zoning and location of Lot 18 


is on the next page as Figure 1. 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 6     


C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION cont. 


FIGURE 1:  


51 WEST NEIGHBORHOOD AND REQUESTED ZONING Source: 51 West General Development Plan, Figure 1 


LOT 18 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 7     


C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION cont. 


General Relationship to the 2017 Comprehensive Plan 


The proposed 51 West subdivision is located in an area designated as the 


Northwest Planned Mixed Use (MU) Area, which is intended for a mix of com-


mercial, office, light industrial and higher-intensity residential uses.  Planned MU 


is intended for residential buildings of three or more units; however, additional 


statements in the policy allow for more flexibility.  


Based on these land use policies, the 51 West Neighborhood fits the intent of 


the PMU, while taking into consideration the surrounding uses and general 


character of the planned neighborhood. 


Lot 18 is one of the higher density multi-family properties in the overall develop-


ment, making it one piece of a larger whole. 


 


Relationship to Nearby Properties 


The general development concept site plan for 51 West depicts a mixed-use 


neighborhood with commercial along USH 51 frontage (west side) and a mix of 


residential unit types on both sides of USH 51.    


On the east side, Fifty One West, LLC is proposing duplex lots along Velkommen 


Way (east of Nygaard Street) to provide a natural extension of the single-family 


and duplex neighborhood to the south, as well as to provide a smooth transi-


tion to the rural, single-family homes east of the development. Higher-density 


residential units have been proposed north of Velkommen Way on Lot 18.  This 


provides increased density in the overall neighborhood and is compatible with 


the potential future commercial development to the north (shown in the 2006 


Linnerud Detailed Neighborhood Plan).  


 


Project Timing and Phasing 


The first phase of the 51 West project will be to develop the east side of USH 51 


with utility infrastructure extensions, road construction, mass grading and pond 


development.   


Lot 18 would be developed in tandem or slightly behind the 51 West Phase-1 


construction, with careful coordination for utility connections and to protect 


new public infrastructure from damage resulting from development of Lot 18.  


Both projects are anticipated to begin late spring/early summer of 2022. 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 8     


C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION cont. 


PD Zoning Rationale & Exemptions 


The Planned Development classification will allow the flexibility that both the 


developer(s) and the City of Stoughton need to successfully implement the 


proposed mix of uses as a coherent, well-designed neighborhood.   


Through this GDP, specific to Lot 18, the developers are requesting exemptions, 


allowing for reduced rear setback minimums and increased density as outlined 


in the table below.  This will allow the developer to maintain the densities de-


sired within the Planned Mixed Use Future Land Use designation (per the City’s 


Comprehensive Plan), while allowing for ideal (speculative) building place-


ment to hold the street edges, park edges, and provide access/views to 


planned open spaces.  The enhanced building design standards in this GDP 


will help to mitigate potential impacts on adjacent lots. 


A full list of requested exemptions are listed in Section D Development      


Standards.   


 


Neighborhood Character/Theme 


The 51 West Development will be a complete neighborhood from single-unit 


detached lots to multi-unit attached housing developments to commercial de-


velopment serving local and regional customers.  


Lot 18 will have the highest density of multi-family residential as part of the over-


all 51 West neighborhood.   However, this density is offset by the planned adja-


cent uses and roads.  Lot 18 is surrounded on all sides by public right-of-way:  


USH 51 abuts the property to the west; Velkommen Way to the south; Nygaard 


Street to the east; and future Greenbriar Road to the north.  Across Nygaard 


Road is a proposed park in Outlot 6 with ponds and trails. The section of 


Velkommen Way between Nygaard Street and USH 51 is proposed to be aban-


doned once a new intersection with Greenbriar Road and USH 51 is approved 


and completed.  This will increase the “buffer” area between the high density 


residential with the less dense two- and single-family homes, (both existing and 


planned), to the south.   


 


Stormwater Management 


The stormwater management plan on Lot 18 is to capture the runoff utilizing 


swales, curbs, catch basins, and private storm sewers and connect to the pub-


lic storm sewers proposed under Nygaard Street which will carry the runoff to 


the proposed regional stormwater ponds for stormwater management.  


The regional stormwater ponds for the 51 West Neighborhood have been de-


signed with a “naturalistic” layout, especially through the trail corridor and park 


space in Outlot 6. There are six wet ponds for pre-treatment and four infiltration 


ponds that will serve this development and manage off-site runoff (from the 


south and east of Outlot 7).  The stormwater management system will control 


peak runoff rates for events ranging from the 1-year through the 200-year 


event.  Additionally, runoff volumes will be controlled for the annual average 


rainfall record (per county and state standards) but also for events ranging 


from the 1-year through the 200-year event.  This last requirement is necessary 


to prevent volume related flood elevation increases in landlocked basins 


which lie downstream from the proposed site.  Note that these requirements 


will need to be met regardless of on-site development density and potential 


changes in drainage patterns within the site. 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 9     


C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION cont. 


Park/Open Space 


The Parks and Recreation Committee approved the 51 West Neighborhood 


park locations with interest in seeing the development meet the parkland dedi-


cation requirement. Since this approval, the park in Outlot 6 has expanded by 


removing four duplex lots along Velkommen Way (south of Nygaard Street), 


and the paved path no longer runs through Outlot 4 (due to increase in storm-


water management requirements). The net result is the overall development 


meets the parkland dedication requirement across both sides of USH 51 and 


provides for trail connections in multiple directions.    


Lot 18 is ideally located directly across Nygaard Street from this proposed park 


area (Outlot 6), which provides immediate views and access to open space, 


park amenities and the trail system for the residents of the 160 multi-family units. 


The trail access also allows these residents the opportunity to access the addi-


tional parks within the 51 West Neighborhood and other amenities within 


Stoughton. 


Utilities  


Fifty One West, LLC and MSA are coordinating water and sewer service with 


the City of Stoughton.   


The watermain will be extended from the current end of Nygaard Street, to 


serve all parcels in this development.  It will be oversized through 51 West along 


Nygaard Street and Oak Opening Way to serve future development to the 


north.  Water loops will be established by connecting to Kettle Park West via 


Oak Opening Drive (during this development process) and through land to the 


north back to Kings Lynn Road (when that land develops). 


Utility infrastructure for the development on Lot 18 will connect directly to these 


public utilities once completed.  Lakestone Properties, LLC and Quam             


Engineering, LLC are working closely with MSA and the City of Stoughton on  


final coordination, location and connection details., which will be addressed 


further during the Specific Implementation Plan review for Lot 18. 


 


 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 10     


C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION cont. 


Transportation  


Streets    


The east side of the 51 West Development includes Nygaard Street (60-ft ROW) 


and Velkommen Way (66-ft ROW). This neighborhood concept reserves land 


east of USH 51 for the future extension of Rutland Dunn Town Line Road.  That 


extension is identified in the 2006 Linnerud Detailed Neighborhood Plan as a 


100-foot ROW; a portion of that ROW is provided.  That connection to the high-


way has been approved by Wis-DOT and is moving forward as Greenbriar 


Drive.  Fifty One West, LLC. is proposing closure of Velkommen Way at USH 51 


once this connection is completed.  


 


Lot 18 access restrictions are shown in the diagram in Figure 3 (next page). 


These will be  followed when developing a specific implementation plan for this 


property. 


 


Pedestrian Connections 


Paved, multi-use paths are proposed on both sides of USH 51. On the east side 


of USH 51, a paved path will run along the eastern edge of the neighborhood 


through Outlot 7 and the proposed park space (Outlot 6), terminating in the 


northeast corner of the neighborhood. Future connections by the City could 


link this path to Howard Heggstad Park and Virgin Lake Park.  The intent is to 


have these two paths connect across USH 51 via lands to the north (the         


Linnerud property on the east and Fifty One West, LLC on the west).   


 
FIGURE 2:   TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 


Source: 51 West General Development Plan, Figure 3 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 11     


C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION cont. 


FIGURE 3:  


ACCESS RESTRICTIONS FOR LOTS 18 AND 19 Source: 51 West Plat and MSA 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 12     


D. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


Land Use, Density, Bulk Regulations  


Development for Lot 18 (PD) in the 51 West Neighborhood shall meet the 


standards  of the MR-24 Zoning District with the exceptions as identified below: 


Land Use 


• Permitted and conditional uses as identified in MR-24 zoning district. 


 


Density and Intensity Requirements 


• Allow multiple buildings on a single lot  


• Minimum of 20 feet separation between buildings 


• Maximum Gross Density (MGD):  


• 32.2 dwelling units per acre 


• Maximum 160 units 


• Impervious Areas: 53% maximum 


• Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR): 47% 


 


 


Bulk Requirements 


• Minimum Lot Area: 1,357 square feet per dwelling unit 


• Building Setbacks (minimum): 


• Front: 25 feet 


• Side: 20 feet 


• Rear: 50 feet  


• Average Building Height: 45 feet maximum (to midpoint of roof height) 


• Signage:  50 square feet for ground sign  


• Measured per Sec. 78-817 of Signage Regulations 


 


Exterior Lighting 


• Intensity of Illumination at Property Line: The maximum level of 0.5 foot     


candles (FC) at property line will be maintained  except for the following   


locations: 


• At driveway access to property where a targeted average level is 0.8 FC 


with a range of 0.5-1.5 FC 


• At required emergency egress points from building(s) and main entrances 


into building(s), a targeted average of 1 FC with a range of 0.5-2 FC 


• The above averages and ranges are recommendations from the            


Illuminating Engineering Society (IES). 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 13     


Residential Design Guidelines 


To achieve the vision in the GDP, inclusive of varying residential types and den-


sities, the following architectural design guidelines will govern residential devel-


opment.  Anything not specifically described in these guidelines will conform 


with City Standards.  


 


Building Design 


• The buildings shall be placed as close to the property setbacks as practical 


to strengthen the street edge and promote street activation. 


• All buildings shall be designed with four-sided architectural treatment, utilizing 


the same design theme and compatible building materials. 


• The buildings shall have well-proportioned fenestrations, facade articulation 


and appropriately scaled architectural features. 


• Each building facade shall include two or more elements that provide visual 


interest and variety, such as balconies, porches, bay windows, garden walls, 


varied building and facade setbacks, and varied roof designs.  Balconies, 


porches, and bay windows are allowed to encroach into the setback areas. 


• Facades greater than 100 feet shall consist of variations in the surface plane 


and roofline heights or configuration. 


 


 


D. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS cont. 


Source: City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 6, Figure 7 


FIGURE 4:  


MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 14     


Building Materials 


• Use quality materials that are durable and will age well.  Acceptable building 


materials include brick, stone, decorative concrete masonry units, wood and 


composite siding.  Materials such as corrugated metal, EIFS (Exterior Insulation 


and Finish System), vinyl or aluminum siding, can be used as accent materials, 


but not as the primary building material. 


• A mix of 2-4 materials and/or colors shall be used on each building facade. 


Doors and Windows 


• A minimum 20% of all facades shall provide glazing or significant architectural 


detailing to provide visual interest.   


• Street-facing facades providing direct access to first story dwelling units 


through individual entrances are encouraged.  A minimum of 25% ground floor 


units with direct access to the sidewalk is preferred.   


Service Areas and Mechanicals 


• Service areas shall be integrated with the building design and screened 


when visible from public streets. 


• Loading areas, mechanical equipment or other utility hardware on the 


ground or building shall be screened from public view by plantings or decora-


tive walls and fences with materials similar to the adjacent building material. 


• Rooftop mechanicals shall be screened using parapet wall extensions and/or 


screening fences on the roof using materials similar to those used on the build-


ing walls.   


• Refuse and recycling enclosures not located within the building(s) shall be 


constructed of quality material matching the design of the primary building. 


D. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS cont. 


Landscaping and Site Treatment 


• Low level plant materials should be utilized appropriately as a buffer for park-


ing lots and building utility areas from the street while maintaining visibility for 


public safety and desirable exposure, using a mix of shrubs, evergreens and 


various perennials and ornamental grasses. 


• In addition to meeting the quantitative landscaping standards in Chapter 78-


603 of the Stoughton zoning ordinance, the following shall be met: 


Climax Trees: One (1) canopy tree shall be planted for every twenty (20) 


residential units. 


• Landscape screening shall include a mix of evergreen and deciduous      


species to achieve effective visual screening during all seasons of the year. 


Decorative Fencing/Walls  


• Acceptable materials for constructing decorative fencing/wall include 


metal/aluminum, wood, stone, brick, and wrought iron.  


• Fencing/walls shall be a minimum three feet above grade. 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 15     


The GDP Concept Plan is a general concept at this time. The plan presents  


ideas that are a broad-brush example of what will be refined as part of the SIP 


phase per the following guidelines. The specific details will need to be              


reviewed as each building site is developed. 


General Conditions 


The overall plan for Lot 18 will coordinate with the requirements of the 51 West 


Development and meet City standards unless specifically exempted by ap-


proval of this GDP. Sidewalks will meet the City’s standards. Plant types should 


be a mix of canopy and evergreen trees, mixed with shrub clusters and peren-


nial and annual planting beds. Buffer setbacks are observed along public 


streets. Public street landscaping, lighting, and any other design details in the 


right-of-way will meet City requirements or be approved.     


Individual parking lots will be buffered from adjacent lots, but have an integrat-


ed landscape scheme and lighting system. Individual building sites will incorpo-


rate foundation plantings, planting beds, and lighting to be appreciated at the 


pedestrian scale.  The City’s standards will be the minimum basis for landscap-


ing goals.  


Parking Lot Edges and Interiors 


All parking lots will require landscaping around their edges and in any land-


scape islands. At a minimum, the City standards will apply.   Coordination be-


tween stormwater management strategy and landscape requirements will 


need to be reviewed during the SIP phase of the project, especially in relation 


to snow removal and surface drainage.      


E. CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPING / SITE DESIGN PLAN 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 16     


General Conditions 


Specific signage design will be addressed in the SIP process following the     


general conditions outlined below. 


• Signs should be integrated into and/or designed to be consistent with the 


building façade and scale. 


• Similar materials, colors and styles should be used to ensure the signage is 


consistent with the building design. 


• Materials must be of high quality to prevent premature weathering of          


the sign. 


• Signs that are prohibited include the following: billboard style wall-mounted 


or roof-mounted signs, and flashing and programmable electronic signs. 


• All development signage would be subject to the City’s sign permitting     


process, and will follow City ordinances for size, amount and location, unless 


specifically exempted by approval of the GDP. 


 


Exceptions 


An exception to the maximum area for site identification sign is being              


requested as part of this GDP.  Specific information is in Section D of this       


document. 


 


 


 


F. CONCEPTUAL SIGNAGE PLAN 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 17     


Land Use Development Areas 


There are six general building types that are allowed within the 51 West Devel-


opment.  Lot 18 has been identified as Building Type III: Large Format Residen-


tial.   


 


Building Type III: 


LARGE FORMAT RESIDENTIAL 


This building type is allowed on Lots 4, 5, & 18 of the 51 West Development. 


G. BUILDING TYPES / THEMES 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 18     


APPENDIX 


Map with Owners within 300 feet  


Mass Grading Plan  


 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 19     


MAP WITH OWNERS WITHIN 300 FEET 


Source: 51 West General Development Plan, Appendix 3 


LOT 18 Project Buffer 


51 West Project Buffer 







Lakestone Properties, LLC General Development Plan Lot 18 - 51 West Development 


January 14, 2022  |  Page 20     


MASS GRADING 


PLAN AND 


“EXISTING” SITE 


PLAN FOR LOT 18 


This Existing Site Plan for Lot 


18 reflects the proposed 


Mass Grading Plan for the 


51 West Development.  It 


represents the starting point 


for the Specific Improve-


ment Plan for this lot. 


Public Improvements as 


shown here are still subject 


to change as 51 West LLC 


and the City of Stoughton 


complete negotiation and 


final design of the overall 


plat. 







<
<


<
<


<


<


O
H


O
H


O
H


O
H


C
P


OH OH OH OH OH


O
H


Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Virtual Public Hearing on Monday 
February 14, 2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a 
proposed rezoning of Lot 18 located within the 51 West Neighborhood on the east side of US 
Highway 51 in the northwest section of the City of Stoughton, owned by Fifty One West, LLC.  
Lot 18 is proposed to be rezoned from RH – Rural Holding to PD – Planned Development – 
General Development Plan (GDP). 
 
For questions regarding this notice, please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421 
 
Additional information including a GDP map can be viewed at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799     Meeting ID: 991 8902 8139 Passcode: 389293 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
     
Published January 27 and February 3, 2022 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning GDP -  51 West Lot 18 Notice.doc 



http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/

https://zoom.us/j/99189028139?pwd=WmZjbG94MzZTcmNGaVRoME9CN1VJdz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Planned Development (PD) Review and Approval
(Requirements per Section 78-914)


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a
planned development and by the City to process said application. Parts II is to be used by the Applicant
to submit a complete application; Parts I - III are to be used by the City as a guide when processing said
application.


I. Recordation of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


Application fee of $_____ received by Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


II. Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicant Use


PD Process Step 1: Pre-application


Step 1 does not require the submittal of an application packet; however, Steps 2-4 do require submittal
of all application materials to the Zoning Administrator prior to Plan Commission review. This step is
not mandatory but optional at the discretion of the applicant or Zoning Administrator.


 A. Contact the Zoning Administrator to place an informal discussion item for the PD on the Plan
Commission agenda (if deemed necessary by the applicant or Zoning Administrator). No details
beyond the name of the Applicant and the identification of the discussion item as a PD is required to
be given in the agenda.


 B. Engage in an informal discussion with the Plan Commission regarding the potential PD. Appropriate
topics may include: location, project themes and images, general mix of dwelling unit types and/or
land uses being considered, approximate residential densities, and non-residential intensities, general
treatment of natural features, general relationship to nearby properties and public streets, and
relationship to the Comprehensive Plan.


NOTE: Points of discussion and conclusions reached in this stage of the process shall in no way be
binding upon the Applicant or the City, but should be considered as the informal, non-binding basis for
proceeding to the next step.


PD Process Step 2: Concept Plan


The Applicant shall provide a draft application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with draft PD Concept Plan Submittal Packet for
determination of completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission
agenda for Concept Plan review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (1) A general written description of proposed PD including the following:


 General project themes and images.


Tami J McCullough
311 E Chicago Street, Suite 240, Milwaukee, WI 53202


262-893-4508 (cell)   tmccullough@jla-ap.com
Lakestone Properties LLC


608-838-1800  (Brett Reimen & Brian Spanos)
Lot 18 - 51 West Development (STH 51 & Velkommen Way)


415


Jan 14, 2022


Jan 14, 2022







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 An initial draft list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed
PD and the location(s) in which they apply and, a complete list of zoning
standards which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in
which they apply. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the
Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the relative merits of
the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the
mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility.


 (3) A written description of potentially requested exemption(s) from the requirements of the
underlying zoning district, in the following order:
1. Land Use Exemptions


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions


3. Bulk Exemptions


4. Landscaping Exceptions


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions


 (4) A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the general
location of major public streets and/or private drives. The Applicant may submit
copies of a larger version of the plan in addition to the 11" x 17" reduction.


PD Process Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with a draft GDP Submittal Packet for determination of
completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission agenda for GDP
review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its surroundings,
and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" x 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed PD including:
 General project themes and images.


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 A statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed. This shall identify
barriers that the Applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard
zoning districts and opportunities for community betterment the Applicant
suggests are available through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed PD
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the requirements
of the underlying zoning district, in the following order:


1. Land Use Exemptions.


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions.


3. Bulk Exemptions.


4. Landscaping Exceptions.


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions.


 (4) A General Development Plan Drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (11" x 17"
electronic copy shall also be provided) of the proposed project showing at least the
following information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for
approval:
 A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the


general location of major public streets and/or private drives.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities and specifically
describing those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and
use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate areas
of large development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface
area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information provided in (3), above to specific areas
on the GDP Drawing.


 (5) General conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate locations of
foundation, street, yard and paving, landscaping, and the compliance of development
with all landscaping requirements of this Ordinance (except as noted in the listing of
exceptions) and the use of bufferyards.


 (6) A general signage plan for the project, including all
 Project identification signs.


 Concepts for public fixtures and signs (street light fixtures and/or poles or street
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or
common practices.


Landscape plan will be submitted with SIP


NA







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 (7) Written justification for the proposed Planned Development. (See Section 78-905 for
requirements of the conditional use procedure.)


PD Step 4: Specific Implementation Plan (SIP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. After the effective date of the rezoning to PD/GDP, the Applicant may file an application for
the proposed SIP with the Plan Commission. This submittal packet shall contain the following
items, prior to its acceptance by the Zoning Administrator and placing the item on the Plan
Commission agenda for SIP review.
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its environs, and
the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed SIP, including:
 Specific project themes and images.


 The specific mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Specific residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The specific treatment of natural features.


 The specific relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 A Statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed identifying perceived
barriers in the form of requirements of standard zoning districts and
opportunities for community betterment through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed SIP
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed SIP and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 (4) A Specific Implementation Plan drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (and electronic
copy at 11" x 17") of the proposed project showing at least the following information
in sufficient detail:
 An SIP conforming to all requirements of Section 78-908(3). If the proposed PD


is a large or group development (per Section 78-205 (11) or (12)) also provide a
proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities specifically describing
those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise areas of all
development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information (3), above to specific areas on the
GDP Drawing.


 (5) A landscaping plan for subject property, specifying the location, species, and installed
size of all trees and shrubs. Include a chart which provides a cumulative total for each
species, type and required location (foundation, yard, street, paved area or bufferyard)
of all trees and shrubs.


 (6) A series of building elevations for the entire exterior of all buildings in the PD, including
detailed notes as to the materials and colors proposed.


 (7) A general signage plan including all project identification signs, concepts for public
fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street sign faces and/or
poles), and large or group development signage themes which are proposed to vary
from City standards or common practices.


 (8) A general outline of the intended organizational structure for a property owners association, if
any; deed restrictions and provisions for private provision of common services, if any.


 (9) A written description which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed SIP with
the approved GDP.


 (10)A written description of any and all variations between the requirements of the applicable
PD/GDP zoning district and the proposed SIP development.


III. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


PD Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for conditional use permits per Section
78-905 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision
per the Municipal Code. All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final
Common Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall be permitted. The
Common Council may extend this five years period by up to five additional years via a majority vote following a
public hearing.


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: ______________


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice published on ___________ and ____________ Date: ______________







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


January 18, 2022 
 
JLA Architects 
Tami McCullough 
311 E. Chicago Street, Suite 240 
Milwaukee, WI.  53202 
 
 
Dear Ms. McCullough; 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed PD-GDP - Planned Development – General 
Development Plan for Lot 18, in the 51 West Subdivision.  A public hearing is scheduled for 
February 14, 2022.  The following items are identified for your review.   
 
1. General Development Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(7) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be 
provided.  Provided  


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  Provided 


C. A general description of the general development plan including: 
a. General project themes and images; Provided 
b. The general mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; Provided 
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; 
Provided 


d. General treatment of natural resources; N/A 
e. General relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided 
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan.  Provided 
g. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies 


barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are 
available through the proposed PD zoning; Provided 


h. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will be 
more than met by the proposed PD and the locations in which they apply and a 
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location in which they apply shall be identified, as compared with 
the most comparable zoning district.  Essentially, the purpose of this listing 
shall be to provide the plan commission with information necessary to 
determine the relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


public benefit and in regard to the mitigation of potentially adverse impacts 
created by design flexibility. Provided 


i. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the 
requirements of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:  


a) Land use exemptions: See below 
b) Density and intensity exemptions: See below 
c) Bulk exemptions: See below 
d) Landscaping exceptions: See below 
e) Parking and loading requirements exceptions: See below 


 
The following are the list of requested exceptions: 


Lot 18 (based on the MR-24 district requirements) – allow the 
following: 


• Multiple buildings on a single lot; 
• Principle building separation of 20 feet(40 feet typical); 
• Multiplex and apartments up to 32.2 units/acre by right 


(up to 160 units); 
• Impervious area of up to 53%; 
• Minimum landscape surface ratio of 47%; 
• Minimum lot area of 1,357 square feet per dwelling unit; 
• Maximum building height of 45 feet at the median of the 


roof; 
• Maximum 50 square feet in area for ground sign. 


(Measured per section 78-817); 
• Maximum lighting intensity level of 0.5 footcandles (FC) 


at the property line except for the following: 
•   At driveway access to property where targeted 


average level is 0.8 footcandles with a range of 0.5 – 1.5 
FC. 


 
D. A general development plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following 


information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:  
a. A conceptual site drawing of the general land use layout and the general 


location of major public streets and/or private drives;  Provided  
b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; N/A 
c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate area 


of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape 
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans 
required by the plan commission or common council; and Provided 


E. A general conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate 
locations of foundation, street, yard, paving and landscaping.   Provided 







[- 3 -] 
 


F. A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs and 
concepts for public fixtures and signs, such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street 
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or common 
practices. Provided 


G. Written justification for the proposed planned development. The applicant shall use the 
requirements of the zoning map amendment procedure (subsections 78.903(4) (c) 1 
through 3) to develop said written justification.  Provided 
The process for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for zoning 
map amendments per section 78-903 of this chapter and (if land is to be divided) to 
that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code.  


All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final 
common council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall 
be permitted. The common council may extend this five years period by up to five 
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. Completed portions of 
the PD/GDP shall retain the PD/GDP status.  


 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\developments\51 west - dvorak\lot 18\lot 18 gdp jan 2022\lot 18 gdp review 1.18.22.doc 



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-903AMOFZOMA



		C-5_Landscape Plan.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		C-5_Landscape Plan














T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\021422\PC Info\Dollar Dump Encl. Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  February 2, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the February 14, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting  
 
Request to change the construction materials for the dumpster enclosure at Dollar Tree, 1008 
Nygaard Street. 
Due to the cost to construct the dumpster enclosure as originally planned and approved, this request 
to construct the enclosure using the same siding that was used for the building for the sides and rear 
of the enclosure while installing a chain-link gate with cream colored slats.  The change could be 
considered meeting the zoning code requirements below.  A resolution and applicant info is 
provided.  
 


78-206 (4) Exterior trash storage. All exterior trash storage shall be located within a gated 
enclosure that completely screens the view of said trash. The exterior of said enclosure shall be 
constructed of some or all of the materials used on the main building. 


 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Approving proposed dumpster enclosure construction materials at Dollar Tree, 1008 Nygaard Street, 


Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  -  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 6 - 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
February 14, 2022 


RECITALS 
 


A. Todd Nelson (the “Applicant”) are seeking approval for dumpster enclosure construction 
materials at Dollar Tree, 1008 Nygaard Street in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin 
(the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Planned Business and all existing uses meet the zoning code requirements. 
  


 
C. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed dumpster enclosure 


construction materials at their regular February 14, 2022 meeting and found that the materials 
meet the intent of the zoning ordinance. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the proposed dumpster enclosure 
constructions materials at Dollar Tree, 1008 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, WI, as presented. 
 
 
   
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Planning Commission Chair 
 


  
    
  
   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2022\Dollar Tree Dump Encl - PC Resolution 6-22.doc 







To:  City Stoughton Zoning Department


Please consider this email as a formal request to include this item in any future plan commission/city 
council meeting to alter the exterior materials for the garbage enclosure located at the Stoughton 
Dollar Tree address being 1016 Nygaard St. City of Stoughton.


As the attached design shows the owner intends to match the exterior enclosure with identical 
materials on the adjacent building.  Also included are details of the two opening gates.


Thank you for your consideration.


As always please reach out with any questions.


Todd Nelson


The three sides will be the same material & color as the building.


The gates will be heavy vinyl weaved in the chain-link-like gates.  Beige in color.


TN







PROPOSED DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE











SHEET


A2


Date:


Scale:


Job #:


As Noted


13-01


04-17-2016


P
ro


je
ct


:


S
h
ee


t 
T


it
le


:
E


le
v


at
io


n
s


A
d
d
re


ss
:


P
ro


p
o
se


d
 f


o
r:


A
d
d
re


ss
:


C I A


o
n


ce
p


ts


n rc
h


it
ec


tu
re


, 
L


L
C


Je
ff


er
y
 G


ro
en


ie
r,


 A
rc


h
it


ec
t


T
h


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
co


n
ta


in
s 


co
n


fi
d


en
ti


al
 o


r 
p


ro
p


ri
et


ar
y


in
fo


rm
at


io
n


 o
f 


C
o


n
ce


p
ts


 i
n


 A
rc


h
it


ec
tu


re
, 


L
L


C
. 


  
N


ei
th


er
th


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
n


o
r 


th
e 


in
fo


rm
at


io
n
 h


er
in


 i
s 


to
 b


e 
re


p
ro


d
u


ce
d


,
d


is
tr


ib
u
te


d
, 


u
se


d
, 


o
r 


d
is


cl
o
se


d
 w


it
h
o


u
t 


au
th


o
ri


za
ti


o
n


.


W
1
2
5
 A


m
id


o
n
 R


o
ad


B
ro


o
k
ly


n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
2
1


6
0
8
-6


9
8
-3


1
9
6


7
1
0
 C


ly
d
e 


S
tr


ee
t


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
8
9


6
0
8
-6


6
9
-1


5
5
4


T
o


d
d


 N
el


so
n


S
to


u
g
h


to
n


, 
W


I


L
o


t 
1


2
5


0
1


 R
o


b
y


 R
o


a
d


North Elevation


2
0
'-


0
"


West Elevation


Scale = 1/8"=1'-0"


2
0
'-


0
"


East Elevation


Scale = 1/8"=1'-0"


2
0
'-


0
"


1
2
'-


0
"


1
2
'-


0
"


2
4
'-


0
"


1
2
'-


0
"


2
4
'-


0
"


4
'-


0
"


4
'-


0
"


2
'-


0
"


2
'-


0
"


45'-0" 36'-0"


South Elevation


2
0
'-


0
"


1
2
'-


0
"


1
2
'-


0
"


2
'-


0
"


Scale = 1/8"=1'-0"


Scale = 1/8"=1'-0"


Face brick


Concete sill cap


EIFS


White Aluminum cap


Bronze Alum. window frames
and insulated glass


Face brick


Concete sill cap


EIFS


White Aluminum cap


Bronze Alum. window frames
and insulated glass


Face brick


Concete sill cap


EIFS


White Aluminum cap


LP TrimLP flat siding


Insulated steel doors
color to match siding


Aluminum down spouts


Face brick


Concete sill cap


EIFS


Bronze Alum. door/window frames
and insulated glass


White Aluminum cap


LP flat sidingInsulated steel doors
color to match siding


LP Trim


Insulated steel doors
color to match siding


Trash Enclosure Plan
1


Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


8
'-


0
"


16'-0"


1'-0"14'-0"1'-0"


8
'-


0
"


6'0 AFF block with stone veneer


4" Concrete Floor


Trash Enclosure Elevation
2


Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


Trash Enclosure Section
3


Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


1'4x8" Concrete footing
with steel reinforcing


3
'-


9
"


6
'-


0
"


Slope 1"


2


3


8'-0"


Cedar on steel frames


Stone Veneer to match building


APPROVED PLAN


ENCLOSURE







EXISTING







EXISTING







==.,... 


:c: 


Cl) 
I ::; I 


I 


I 


I 


I 


Existing 10" Water Main 
1--------W


r'I -----1r--
----------Li 


1- isting B" Sanitary Sewer 
(J) 


8-------rSTMl----:7"'::;;����


1----W 


-- --- 90' 


1a· ---=-+-- 24• -----1sffl--, 
.,7 _g ::i- '-' 


---+--+II °<" 


-----------.. 
Bio-Retention Basin 


' 


I
I I
I 


I 
I 


� 


I 
I 


'✓ 
I 
I 


I 


I I 
I


42' 


9.0' 


Typ 


.. -------


(!) 


� I I 18 c::, I
I O "'""I I � I II I 


I I 


I I 


I 
I I
I I
I 


I .... 1 


§ 
I 


' 
It) 
!.') 
co 


\ 


:; I 
:z: I 


"' 


Ir \ 
,._ \0 


It 
' 


11 
0 


11 
l 
\ 


�I 
I , 


� I (Cl 
(Cl IX) I1l '" 


Door 150' Door 


Proposed Building 


� -I I I "' 
I I I I I I I I I I I� \I


I 
r 


I I I I m I f I 150' _ 
I \


\ 


--G) 
(j) 


32' 


(j) 


• 


" / I I I I / as es_ es - - es \ es 
I I I 1i I \ ___ ,--1g- _ _ _ _ �. - -- __ =-__ �-::: _______ -"'--",--- _________ "11- ___ - .,


Bi 


2f---+-I 


Ii 


.. 


ffl 


Ii 


Nu 
�m ., 


• 


\ 
\ 


\ 


0"' 


0"' 


• .. 4. '
I 


" 


:� "' 
:I,
<I) '" 
!'!' 
·O '"
i:o ,


l • " 
\ , 


)� 


\ 
.... , \ 


• I 


" 
• 


• 
• ,. • 


I• 
• ,


@Y '6 I . . • , • 
• 


• ,
,


©' 


• 
• 
IJJ, 


s:,,�-
8· 
U)' 
• 


• 
• •. • • . , 
" , 


'· • •. , 


® @. • 
• , 
" , 


,• • . ,• 


• 
• 


• I 
I I I I I I I I ,, 


- - -
- � 


-
/ / � - - - -


- -
'" :: � �


'N1ob·11 1·00·1 W !__.)�-
, 


l-----
l
,.:__ __ --1-...::;.,_.L_ ________ S_8_9°_4_ 9-'0_0 ___ w __________ -41.,_::.,,,-


',:
_24_5 __ 0_0_· ___ _Jc.:::J__...J..._ __ 1_2·-'u=llt,"-·


1y
_E_as-.m-'e'-n-t -t----,"-!IH


I . ' 4.20' - - -_-+- - - - - '° - - - -lFr=================��==================�===========================�
- -


Transition 4' to 5'


Sidewalk 


Cl) 


Existing Driv, 


... 
� 
II) 


Ci) 


� 


! ' 
co 


�
-!!!


3 
20 10 


Site Information 


Site Address: 2415 Roby Road 


Legal Description: 
Lots 6 and 7 of John Nygaard's Virgin Lake Es1ates 
being part of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Section 06, 
City of Stoughton , Dane County, Wisconsin 


Zoning: Planned Business 


Use of Property: Commercial Building 


Areas 
Total Lot Area 48,695 sq fl


Proposed Building 12,000 sq fl
Proposed Pavement I Sidewalks 18,036 sq fl
Proposed Total Impervious Areas 30,036 sq fl
Proposed Green Space 16,659 sq ft 


Parking Requirements 
Parking needed 1 stall I 300 sq ft of Building
Building area = 12,000 sq ft 
12,000 sq ft I 300 sq ft = 40 stalls 


Site Ratio 


24% 


37% 
61% 
39% 


Total number of stalls: 38 regular stalls, 2 ADA Access Stalls 


Bike Stall Requirements: 
10% of the number of parking stalls 
40 parking stalls x 10% = 4 bike s1alls 
Number of Bike Stalls = 6 (2' x 6' stall) 


Bike Rack 
Use Inverted "U" bike rack anchored to the concrete . 
product type UX190-SF-G Surface Mount 
34" high, 30" wide 


Plan Key 


G) 1 B" concrete curb and gutter- Accept Curb 
® 1 B" concrete curb and gutter - Reject Curb 
@ Thicken edge concrete sidewalk 
@ Concrete sidewalk - 5' wide, 4" Thick 
@ Concrete sidewalk in driveway area - 7" Thick 
® Concrete apron 
(j) Asphalt Pavement 
@ Parking Stall Striping - typ_ 
® Concrete bike stalls - 2' x 6' stalls 
(10 Curb Taper - 3' taper 
{11 > Curb Cut - 3' wide 


@ Truncated Domes 


Notes: 
1. All curb dimensions are to face of curb.
2. All curb radius are to face of curb. All curb raduis are 4.0' unless noted.
3. There is no existing sidewalk within the right of way along this property.


(j) 


@ 
® 


@ 


® 


The sidewilk will need to be constructed. The proposed sidewalk shall 
be 5' wide and 1.0 feet off right of way line. 


Proposed Pavement 
4" - 4 LT 58-2BS 
1 O" - Stone Base 


. . • Concrete Sidewalk 
Concrete Bike Stalls , , . . 


,.;_ ... "" ,.;_ .. , "" 4" Thick - 2" stone base


,:--·
, 


. ,· 1. . Concrete Sidewalk - Driveway 
' , , .. ...


... 


,l_,,j .. 7" Thick - 2" stone base 


, , Concrete Apron • • 
... ,1· . 


. . .
... ,,i· . 7" Thick - 2" stone base . . 


0 


• 


Scale 1" = 20' 


20 40 60 


I= z z" "


C 
0 


;; 


.. � � s,.:. ....
• "I 9
C a J


c:: 


,! 
a.. 


.s..... 
Cl) 


I 


"0 
ca 
0 


tt 
� 


.Q 
0 


tt 
It) ..... 
� 


0 
('I') 
IO 


i!E 
NO


,, ...... u- co .
l:"3"5? g, 
-o---


� ,-.... - .... 
:::s ('I') >< Q)


OIO CG Q) 
CO_LL.!: 
c3: Cl 
CG O C 
Ec�oj 
Ill O IO CG 
C lll9 0 


■-·-llllllf' -:::i::: 'C � CG ca•- >,
CO:::ENO.... ......... 


� fl 


Ci) 


� 
Jg 


ca 
� 
ctl 


...J 


.!:; 


C 
0 
.c 
ll. 


.!:; 
Ci)c:: 0
t.l 


� 


;,;..... 
.ei §$ 


8Ci) 


"E? Cl) c::ctl 
ctl ctl 


� 
C 


< c::·
c:: -9 
..c: 


� � 
r-,...· -9 


Cl) 
� ..... c:: 0 
ctl 


-0co --..... <.)0 
...J 


16541-L 


C-1


Sheet 1 


f Sheets 1 


ORIGINAL APPROVAL


X



mstacey

Highlight









		1008 Nygaard Street Site Plan - R-8.pdf

		06  1008 Nygaard Street building Site Plan.pdf

		2415 Roby Road - Site Plan Set 04-08-20.pdf

		2415 Roby Road - Cover 04-08-20

		2415 Roby Road - Site Plan 04-08-20

		2415 Roby Road - Grading Plan 04-08-20

		2415 Roby Road - Details 04-08-20

		2415 Roby Rd - Lighting Plan
















T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\021422\PC Info\Stone Crest Concept Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  February 8, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners  
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the February 14, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting  
 
 
Stone Crest Subdivision Concept Plan 
This agenda item is for discussion only.  City Staff have not had time to completely review this 
concept.   
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





AUTUMN  CREST


AUTUMN  CREST


FALL HAVENFALL HAVEN


STO
NE C


REST  
RD


STO
NE C


REST  
RD


PR
O


PO
SE


D
   


R
O


AD
  “


A”
PR


O
PO


SE
D


   
R


O
AD


  “
A”


PR
O


PO
SE


D
   


 R
O


AD
  “


A”
PR


O
PO


SE
D


   
 R


O
AD


  “
A”


PR
O


PO
SE


D
   


R
O


AD
  “


B”
PR


O
PO


SE
D


   
R


O
AD


  “
B”


PROPOSED   RD  “D”PROPOSED   RD  “D”


PROPOSED   ROAD  “E”PROPOSED   ROAD  “E”


PROPOSED   ROAD  “C”PROPOSED   ROAD  “C”


CTH  A
CTH  A


USH 51USH 51


STONE CREST
SUBDIVISION
Phases 1 & 2


SP
R


IN
G


  R
D


SP
R


IN
G


  R
D


Lots
2 Commercial 
1 Mixed Use  
10 Multi-Family (MF)
13 Duplex  
112 Single-Family (SF) Trails


 Primary Trail
 Connecting Trails 
 Access Points


454 Units  (Net 6.7 U/A)
138 SF / Duplex Units
316 MF Units


STONE CREST SUBDIVISION
Phase 3 (And Future Phases)


PHASE 3


Project #; 21531000
DATE: 01.31.22







AUTUMN  CREST


AUTUMN  CREST


FALL HAVENFALL HAVEN


STONE CREST  RD


STONE CREST  RD


PR
O


PO
SE


D
   


 R
O


AD
  “


A”
PR


O
PO


SE
D


   
 R


O
AD


  “
A”


CTH  A
CTH  A


STONE CREST
SUBDIVISION
Phases 1 & 2


Trails
 Primary Trail
 Connecting Trails 
 Access Points


PUD Lots
1: 2.16 Acres   (up to 42 Units)
2: 3.86 Acres   (up to 16 units) 


STONE CREST 
SUBDIVISION
Phase 3


PHASE 3


Project #; 21531000
DATE: 01.31.22


LOT 1


LOT 2


LOT 
3


LOT 
4


ex.
Lot


wetlands





